

RESOLUTION NO.

[Transportation Code – Division II of the San Francisco Transportation Code – SF*park* Program.]

**Resolution amending Division II of the Transportation Code to authorize the Director of Transportation to determine parking meter rates, times and days for enforcement, maximum time period permitted to Park, and the parking meter technology to be used; and permanently continue meter and special event rates at the current geographical locations and identify the criteria for setting motorcycle, vehicle, and Special Event Parking meter rates for Parking Meter Zone Five (SF*park* Program Areas).**

NOTE: Additions are [begin addition] single-underline Times New Roman [end addition] ; deletions are [begin deletion] ~~strike through Times New Roman~~ [end deletion] .

The Municipal Transportation Agency Board of Directors of the City and County of San Francisco enacts the following regulations:

Section 1. Article 400 of Division II of the Transportation Code is hereby amended by revising Sections 401, 410, and 412, to read as follows:

**SEC. 401. PARKING METER RATES, OPERATION TIMES, AND TIME LIMITS.**

Within the range of charges authorized for each Parking Meter Zone in Sections 406-410 [begin addition] , and Section 412 [end addition] of this Article, and consistent with applicable law and the policies established by the SFMTA Board of Directors, the Director of Transportation is authorized to determine:

- (a) The rate to be charged at any particular meter at any particular time;
- (b) The times and days during which deposit of valid payment at a Parking Meter is required;
- (c) The maximum time period permitted for Parking at any Parking Meter; and
- (d) The Parking Meter technology to be used by the SFMTA.

## **SEC. 410. PARKING METER RATES – MOTORCYCLES.**

The hourly rate for motorcycle Parking Meters for Parking Meter Zone Numbers One through [begin addition] Four [end addition] [begin deletion] ~~Five~~ [end deletion] shall be between one-fifth the minimum and maximum parking meter rates applicable to automobiles for that particular Parking Meter Zone. [begin addition] The rates for Parking Meter Zone Number Five shall be set based on motorcycle occupancy on any block or set of blocks during the hours of parking meter operation according to the following criteria: (1) if occupancy is eighty percent or above, rates will be increased by \$0.10 per hour; (2) if occupancy is sixty percent or above but below eighty percent, rates will not be changed; (3) if occupancy is above thirty percent but below sixty percent, rates will be lowered by \$0.10 per hour; or (4) if occupancy is below thirty percent, rates will be decreased by \$0.20 per hour. Rates shall be adjusted not more than every twenty-eight days. [end addition] [begin deletion] ~~The hourly rate for Parking Meter Zone Five shall expire on June 30, 2014.~~ [end deletion]

## **SEC. 412. PARKING METER ZONE NUMBER FIVE.**

(a) Notwithstanding the areas listed for Parking Meter Zones One through Four, Parking Meter Zone Five (the "SFpark [begin deletion] ~~Pilot~~ [end deletion] Program Areas") shall include that portion of the City and County of San Francisco not under the jurisdiction of the Port of San Francisco and in the following areas:

(1) **Downtown SFpark [begin deletion] ~~Pilot~~ [end deletion] Program Area** shall commence at a point where the northerly line of Folsom Street intersects the easterly line of The Embarcadero, thence south-westerly along the northerly line of Folsom Street to the westerly line of Fifth Street, thence north-westerly along the westerly line of Fifth Street to the northerly line of Market Street, thence easterly along the northerly line of Market Street to the westerly line of Powell Street, thence northerly along the westerly line of Powell Street to

northerly line of Bush Street, thence easterly along the northerly line of Bush Street to the westerly line of Grant Avenue, thence northerly along the westerly line of Grant Avenue to the northerly line of Washington Street, thence easterly along the northerly line of Washington Street to the westerly line of Kearny Street, thence northerly along the westerly line of Kearny Street to the northerly line of Jackson Avenue, thence easterly along the northerly line of Jackson Avenue to the easterly line of The Embarcadero, thence south-easterly along the easterly line of The Embarcadero to the point of commencement.

(2) **Civic Center SFpark [begin deletion] Pilot [end deletion] Parking [begin deletion] Pilot [end deletion] Area** shall commence at a point where the southerly line of Market Street intersects the easterly line of Hyde Street, thence south-easterly along the southerly line of Market Street to the easterly line of Gough Street, thence northerly along the easterly line of Gough Street to the southerly line of Page Street, thence westerly along the southerly line of Page Street to the westerly line of Laguna Street, thence northerly along the westerly line of Laguna Street to the northerly line of Fulton, thence easterly along the northerly line of Fulton to the westerly line of Gough street, thence northerly along the westerly line of Gough Street to the northerly line of Eddy Street, then easterly along the northerly line of Eddy Street to the easterly line of Hyde Street, thence southerly along the easterly line of Hyde Street to the point of commencement.

(3) **Fisherman's Wharf SFpark [begin deletion] Pilot [end deletion] Parking [begin deletion] Pilot [end deletion] Area** shall commence at a point where the southerly line of Bay Street intersects the easterly line of Kearny Street, thence westerly along the southerly line of Bay Street to the easterly line of Taylor street, thence southerly along the easterly line of Taylor street to the southerly line of Columbus Avenue, thence north-westerly along the southerly line of Columbus Avenue to the southerly line of North Point Street, thence westerly along the southerly line of North Point Street to the westerly line of Polk

Street, thence northerly along the westerly line of Polk Street to the northerly line of Beach Street, thence easterly along the northerly line of Beach Street to the westerly line of Hyde Street, thence northerly along the westerly line of Hyde Street to the southerly line of Jefferson Street, thence easterly along the southerly line of Jefferson Street to the easterly line of Powell Street, thence southerly along the easterly line of Powell Street to the northerly line of Beach Street, thence easterly along the northerly line of Beach Street to the westerly line of Grant Avenue, thence southerly along the westerly line of Grant Avenue to the southerly line of North Point Street, thence easterly along the southerly line of North Point Street to the easterly line of Kearny Street, thence southerly along the easterly line of Kearny Street to the point of commencement.

(4) **Marina SFpark [begin deletion] Pilot [end deletion] Parking [begin deletion] Pilot [end deletion] Area** shall commence at a point where the southerly line of Filbert Street intersects the easterly line of Webster Street, thence westerly along the southerly line of Filbert Street to the westerly line of Steiner Street, thence northerly along the westerly line of Steiner Street to the southerly line of Lombard Street, thence easterly along the southerly line of Lombard Street to the westerly line of Broderick Street, thence northerly along the westerly line of Broderick Street to the northerly line of Francisco Street, thence easterly along the northerly line of Francisco Street to where Francisco Street meets Alhambra Street, thence easterly along the northerly line of Alhambra Street to easterly line of Pierce Street, thence southerly along the easterly line of Pierce Street to the northerly line of Toledo Way, thence easterly along the northerly line of Toledo Way to the easterly line of Mallorca Way, thence southerly along the easterly line of Mallorca Way to the northerly line of Chestnut Street, thence easterly along the northerly line of Chestnut Street to the easterly line of Fillmore Street, thence southerly along the easterly line of Fillmore Street to the northerly line of Lombard Street, thence easterly along the northerly line of Lombard Street to the

easterly line of Webster Street, thence southerly along the easterly line of Webster Street to the point of commencement.

(5) **Fillmore SFpark [begin deletion] Pilot [end deletion] Parking [begin deletion] Pilot [end deletion] Area** shall commence at a point where the southerly line of McAllister Street intersects the easterly line of Webster Street, thence westerly along the southerly line of McAllister Street to the westerly line of Steiner Street, thence northerly along the westerly line of Steiner Street to the southerly line of Post Street, thence westerly along the southerly line of Post Street to the westerly line of Pierce Street, thence northerly along the westerly line of Pierce Street to the northerly line of Clay Street, thence easterly along the northerly line of Clay Street to the easterly line of Steiner Street, thence northerly along the easterly line of Steiner Street to the northerly line of Jackson Street, thence easterly along the northerly line of Jackson Street to the easterly line of Webster Street, thence southerly along the easterly line of Webster Street to the northerly line of Bush Street, thence easterly along the northerly line of Bush Street to the easterly line of Laguna Street, thence southerly along the easterly line of Laguna Street to the southerly line of Geary Boulevard, thence easterly along the southerly line of Geary Boulevard to the easterly line of Webster Street, thence southerly along the easterly line of Webster Street to the point of commencement.

(6) **South Embarcadero SFpark [begin deletion] Pilot [end deletion] Parking [begin deletion] Pilot [end deletion] Area** shall commence at a point where the southerly line of Mariposa Street intersects the easterly line of Terry A. Francois St, thence westerly along the southerly line of Mariposa Street to the easterly line of the CalTrain tracks, thence northerly along the CalTrain tracks to northerly line of King Street, thence easterly along the northerly line of King Street to the westerly line of Fifth Street, thence northerly along the westerly line of Fifth Street to the northerly line of Folsom Street, then easterly along the northerly line of Folsom Street to the easterly line of The Embarcadero, then southerly

along the easterly line of The Embarcadero to the southerly line of King Street, thence easterly along the southerly line of King Street to the easterly line of Third Street, then southerly along the easterly line of Third Street to the northerly line of Terry A. Francois St, then easterly along the northerly line of Terry A. Francois St to the easterly line of line of Terry A. Francois St, then southerly along the easterly line of line of Terry A. Francois St to the point of commencement.

(7) **Mission SFpark [begin deletion] Pilot [end deletion] Parking [begin deletion] Pilot [end deletion] Area** shall commence at a point where the southerly line of Twenty-Fourth Street intersects the easterly line of South Van Ness Avenue, thence westerly along the southerly line of Twenty-Fourth Street to the westerly line of Valencia Street, thence northerly along the westerly line of Valencia Street to the southerly line of Sixteenth Street, thence westerly along the southerly line of Sixteenth Street to the westerly line of Guerrero Street, thence northerly along the westerly line of Guerrero Street to the northerly line of Fifteenth Street, thence easterly along the northerly line of Fifteenth Street to the easterly line of South Van Ness Avenue, thence southerly along the easterly line of South Van Ness Avenue to the point of commencement.

(b) The rates for Parking Meters in Parking Meter Zone Number Five shall be between \$0.25 an hour and \$6.00 an hour. [begin addition] The rates shall be set based on vehicle occupancy on any block or set of blocks during the hours of parking meter operation according to the following criteria: (1) if occupancy is eighty percent or above, rates will be increased by \$0.25 per hour; (2) if occupancy is sixty percent or above but below eighty percent, rates will not be changed; (3) if occupancy is above thirty percent but below sixty percent, rates will be lowered by \$0.25 per hour; or (4) if occupancy is below thirty percent, rates will be decreased by \$0.50 per hour. Rates shall be adjusted not more than every twenty-eight days.

[end addition] (c) Notwithstanding subsection (b), the Director of Transportation is authorized to set a Special Event Parking Meter rate between \$0.25 an hour and \$18.00 an hour during, or up to four hours prior to, special events in the South Embarcadero, Civic Center and Fillmore SF *park* [begin deletion] ~~Pilot~~ [end deletion] Program Areas to recover the costs incurred by the SFMTA for parking-related services in connection with the special event. For purposes of this subsection, a special event shall include athletic events, concerts, conventions, major parades, street festivals, entertainment or cultural exhibitions or shows, or any other similar event that is expected to generate a significant, short-term demand for on-street parking. [begin addition] The rates shall be set based on vehicle occupancy on any block or set of blocks according to the following criteria: (1) if occupancy is ninety percent or above, rates will be increased by \$0.50 per hour; (2) if occupancy is sixty-five percent or above but below ninety percent, rates will not be changed; or (3) if occupancy is below sixty-five percent, rates will be lowered by \$0.50 per hour. Rates shall be adjusted not more than every twenty-eight days.

[end addition] [begin deletion] ~~(d) The provisions of this section shall expire on June 30, 2014.~~

[end deletion] Section 2. Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective 31 days after enactment. Enactment occurs when the San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency Board of Directors approves this ordinance.

Section 3. Scope of Ordinance. In enacting this ordinance, the San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency Board of Directors intends to amend only those words, phrases, paragraphs, subsections, sections, articles, numbers, letters, punctuation marks, charts, diagrams, or any other constituent parts of the Transportation Code that are explicitly shown in this ordinance as additions or deletions in accordance with the "Note" that appears under the official title of the ordinance.

APPROVED AS TO FORM:  
DENNIS J. HERRERA, City Attorney

By: \_\_\_\_\_  
JOHN I. KENNEDY  
Deputy City Attorney

I certify that the foregoing resolution was adopted by the San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency Board of Directors at its meeting of May 20, 2014.

\_\_\_\_\_  
Secretary to the Board of Directors  
San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency